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Appleby Spurling Hunter
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Canon's Court
22 Victoria Street
Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda
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@K . (852) 2757 5138

FTERDETE

Butterfield Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke, Bermuda
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The Bank of New York

American Depositary Receipts

101 Barclay Street, 22nd Floor West
New York, NY 10286, USA
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No0.540 Bamrungmuang Road,
Debsirin Sub-district,
Pomprab District,

" Bangkok Metropolis
(IREATZ2HEKRE)

=
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21,300 KAHEE 100

& i
it A

Condominium Unit, EIRSE 900 KAKERE 100
Room No.17/353,
Soi Sukhumvit 4 (Nana-Tai),
Sukhumvit Road,
Klongton Subdistrick,
Klongtoey District,
Bangkok Metropolis
(LREeAm2EEXRE)

Unit No.303, &I 760 p Bt 100
3rd Floor, Silom Complex,
Silom Road, Bangrak District,
Bangkok
(UREATWZ2EE)

Unit No.40-41, BE 580 Rl 100
Fortune Town Department Store,
2nd Floor, Ratchaddapisek Road,
Din Dang District, Bangkok
(EREATZ2ES)
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x LR RER BRYR MrEsE
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REABRAR ZEEZH & ERNEERERE=T-% 1,605,498
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-B-EBERE AECEB OB
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T-EARZEET2LTRAUTHLTRA])  ZEXZRTEREZ2FERERS - AQFZ24H
BArf-E+ (M¥FK) SEERATAEFETIETERNNB LR RAXITLUTHHEERS (T
HEWME]) - ZFREFBUT :

&3 e A= HEM ERYE HrEs
(B H#)
HF%E —EEMEAA=TA ME ERHR 300,852
BERLQE H-EZNF BEZETZRBE %
TRA-HFE® HIBEAEZRAGEN
REBRAE —EEMFEARZTH ME EBNEREREC=T - 1,785,696
H-EENE EXTEBHELL
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HLftRHHEERERLLF

EETWEE

RIBENET-BZBHENLAH DEBBSEFNLITHRIBRNFEERE BEFLHTRAE14A34
B BEXREEUSEBRAGEATFURE  MEBBHLTHRUFUAZESHRAamBELHBIREM
Ao AR BIH LTRINE14AITERZE14A40R R 14AASEE14AATHR ZREUBRRER AH N F UL
WE -

FEERERBRFEERBR ((ZEXB ) NFEREXSRBZERHRAARTEASU - RRERE
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i

() RAEFREZBEER-REBBREFPIL:

BT AREB 2R X
iy HRBEEEZEXIZz2EBWE K-
(iv)y BREEQRREMES  BRATSEBERFTEAA[NBERREANE ZHK -

EERFIETHRABZESES

REBEIAF=ZA=+—R  FLAEERIZETHRABREARAREERAT (ERRELRPEKH ([F
HRPEGHDEXVED 2R HBRRORESPHESCREZSRPERIEXVEETREST A
EXRRNARERFZEERER (BRLAQARESRELEAI S RPERIRIRI AL RFEEZEER
BER) BARVCRERBERFIRPERMEB2ERETATFEZECMAZERRER  IREL
TRRAESETEFRZNBEEFH((EEFH D ENEX QAR ZESERERNT ¢

(B) ®2REE-KRH

EERRGEA
4 BE#s
EEELB 54 AR AEES ooy Bkt
(%)
AR E ERBEEAR 6,815,854 86,994,933 93,810,787 54.75

TEREAT RS

5 1R BEEEA 2,580,000 - 2,580,000 15
BEE . BEREEA 2,400,000 — 2,400,000 1.4
HEN EXHEEA 451,200 - 451,200 0.26
KEE— EREEA 600 - 600 0.00035
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Hit 6 (147)
EREATRKMBATZBIEZH 339 1,557
ME FRAEEARPEBFECILRER FHENE -
—TETMEISTEEEER 33
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BETFT BETFT
1,714 3,427
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8. EBEREH
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M- BEERE

BRUZ gR- %8
EF B AR BHED 4B I2  BAZHRERNE
PEZH XAER RBEN REZH THEH ERRE  R%E BEEE BEAER &%
BETT BBTR BEFL BMTRL BETL BETR BETRL BETL BETR ARYR
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BAERGE

ZEEREMA-A 4,800 8,565 437 1680 1710 131 13,008 16,480 7700 54511
HE - - - - - 2 481 529 5,071 6,063
HE - - - (630) - - (3869)  (4.069) (876)  (9.444)
BB 1,800 40 197 300 - - - - - 2,337
LEE - 56 3 - - - 28 51 2 159
ZZBIEZB=t-R 8,600 8,661 637 1,350 1,710 133 9626 12991 11916 5362
ZRFEREERE

ZZENERB-B - - - - - 93 10785 12642 1949 25469
EENE 111 270 19 18 123 8 996 946 2,090 4,581
EhBE - - - - - - (3523 (3.85) 219 (7.394)
EftRE (1) {210 (119) (18) (123) - - - - (641)
] - - - - - - 3 50 2 106
ZB8TEZAZ+-H - - - - - 101 8,293 9,986 3841 2220
BEFE

ZERREZRZ+-R 8,500 8,661 637 1,350 1,710 kY 1,335 3,005 8075 31,405
ZEEMEZRZt-8 4,800 8,565 437 1,680 1710 3 2,223 3,838 5750 29,042
NE BERREZAXRGENT

A - - - - - 133 9628 12991 11,916 34668
CEEIEEELE 6,600 8,661 837 1,350 1710 - - - - 18958

6,600 8,661 637 1,350 1,710 133 8628 12,991 11916 53,626

MENABVBEGEALTHR ST IF A=+ AR AHMMBEETFUER -BEYELEE
4B ITEM o BN E B Sallmanns (Far East) Limited Eff - R EHBERITE -

NZENEERARBREBTEAR R-IESRF=-BR=1T-—-B2FEREREREASBY
20,168,000t (= EZ M F . EH¥22286,000T) °
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CEEZNFENE-BR-ZBEZEE=ZE=+—8 348

EEFE
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EERE 30
—EEFFE=ZB=+—-H 227

REEAE
—EERE=A=+—8 121
—EENE=ZB=+—RH 151
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2005 2004
BYETT BETT
HEERO -REREERE 59,635 57,951
FE U Y BB D B FRIE R R 29,590 42 282
89,225 100,233

EBEAQRAR-_EERFZRA=ZT—BEIEMEBLRAZEN - B2HESIRESE -

RERESZZER  BXFEMBRARAZEN TR NBRAR  BFHB2MELAT2ER
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RUMBLRERELEEST 27 - BXAAR-FRALBITEEREN  REFTIEAERD
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BE_BRERFEZF=+-RUEE

FriE e N aER
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2005 2004
E¥T X BT T
BEEERE - 24
WS A S FIE R E 379 2,215
379 2,239
FRBELATIEMNETHNRERATEPEAMTIMRELEZERNNT ¢
EmEEEREN AT
AMBEARSERETIMRETERT IR 24%
FEEFK WMNERBEEZRRERS
HBEHERE
2005 2004
BET T AT T
REZESH .
REEE - EILE 4,440 5,000
HERE
BAESERERTE-EB 267 416
REELE-ERE - 2,976
BRI EHELRTE-SIMME ' 5,838 5,969
BREEE-EEE ' 85,355 108,054
BEEES-BEE 19,355 35,354
115,255 157,769
U BRERR2EEEINAT ¢
ERE 4,440 5,000
FE 110,815 152,769
115,255 157,769
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14. BE&
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2005 2004
EBEFIT EBYFT
BEFE 50,156 63,455
ERMH 5,106 3,614
55,262 67,069
REAEEBTABAZEFEERKRABYS,940,000T (Z2EF  BH8,842,0007T) °
LES Rz EBREFEFEB424,252,000T (ZEBME @ B1¥381,115,0007T) DL HATER
Bt E -
15, EWRRR  FHESREBEMNRE
BUWESD  FHERSREMFECEERETS E®52 416,000t (ZEZME | B%56,650,0007T) °
LWTA-ZESRE-A=Z+—-HEE2RUER BRI
£E
2005 2004
BET T BT T
0 —60X 47,891 50,455
61 —90X 1,871 3,298
B0 X 2,654 2897
52,416 56,650
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£ [H
2005 2004
EBE T B F T
REEBZ2HIHEY .
BEEEMNESHAE 48,626 68,151
ERAEFRER (6,492) (6,633)
42,134 61,518
EEX (41,394) (62,402)
740 (884)
IS
B ARBEECENEELR 939 438
CHARBEEZENAENERR (199) (1,322)
740 (884)

RIBZTAFZRA=Z+-8B BFFFBEZRERNBW2305000T (ZFZWEEF 1 B¥4,909,000
T MEBIARABRENIRUREFALTHR -

ENRE FARSRENEA
BERE - FARERECEEESREEFEREN23,861,000T (ZE2ZMF @ j8%28,613,0007) °
UTA-ZFTIF=A=+-HEEZRNERZRE DT :

RE

2005 2004
BEFTT BT T
0 —60XK 20,206 26,739
61 —90% 1,445 -
Wo0X 2,210 1,874
23,861 28,613
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Nk (3 A) 536 (107) (50) 379
R-ZEEWE=A=+-A 536 (107) (50) 379
TEERBERA
N (3 A) 388 (651) (36) (299)
924 (758) (86) 80

R-BEREF=A=S+—8  AEDRFEFEAB510,211,000T (ZBFME © B4 504,159,000
) BEHREEEAARBAECEARAERH2EEMATFRR - RERHEFRTBEEY
2,318,000t R (Z TS MNF : EH2359,000n) ¥R —Z—-ZFHH - R BEBSRTERY
HE o

R-BERFEZA=Z+-8 ZFEETNREREEREH31,616,000T (ZEZTME | B
38,162,0007T) » ZAMBBERKER  EEFRAREABHIER S BENRBSZRTRER &
TEEREEIEERIREE °

L 7R
2005 2004
BEFT BETT
EERE
240,000,000 Z &K (= FF M F : 240,000,0008) -
BREBHOLS0T(ZFTFTMF  BH0.507T) 120,000 120,000
ERTRARERAE
171,355, 871REBER (ZFFMF © 171,355,871K) -
BREWOSOT (ZEFMF  EH0.507T) 85,678 85,678

R-BEEF=ZA=+-BLFER YERETEH  -REEE  ZRERBEOATZROUUITE
RREETE SREEBH0MWITIREIREREBIITZERTRABITZEBREHASE
BRBH05TT o
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R-BZIFE=ZR=T-H

(i REEGHED TEBZHELEEEREHE
A H#E79,000T)
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(ii) EXRERASESSREES ZHEBH27,000 (=
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R ER DT
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Bz _EERF-F=F-HILFE

FEMFERBRE

EXE BRUE SHERf
RE2E BARER DRESE EARER SDHHEEE REMERE KRBEH &
EEFR BETR HETT BEFR BETR BETR BETn EEFxR
223434 18,231 14 156 2358 - 32,993 27855
- - - 1,238 - - - 1,238
- - - - (132) - - (132
- - - - - - 22863 22863
- - - - - 5141 (8568)  (3.427)
203434 18,231 1 2764 103 5141 47288 297,908
- - - - - (5,141) - (5141)
- - - 685 - - - 685
- - - - (47) - - @n
- - - - - - 3764 3764
- - - - - 1713 (3421 (1719)
203434 18,231 14 3449 989 1713 47625 295455
AEHWHER BN EZREFEBEI103,000% (ZEE

T (ZEZME : BH108,000T) ©
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D BEE27,000T) R EEBHBEY198,000
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20. & (F)

EnE

RAHE BABH EEEE REBEHEER RERF &5

BEFLT  BEFI BETT BETT  BETR BEFT
28
R-EEZENE—-H 223,434 6,226 14 - 13,856 243,530
REERR - - - - 3,260 3,260
BRE - - - 5,141 (8,568) {3,427)
R-BEEMEZA=+-1 223,434 6,226 14 5,141 8,548 243,363
BER-Z3CEEREEER - - - (5,141) - (5,141)
AEEEBR - - - - (2,158) (2,158)
BE - - - 1,713 (3,427) (1,714)
R-ZEZTE=A=t-8 223,434 6,226 14 1,713 2,963 234,350
MiaE

(a) BABRBRTIR-AWNANAFELAHBLRAR2EEERAAERBRINATROBBEARBARKGELZ
REREZHEZE -BEERE-AN-—FLR WM ES  BABBRDATRTRR -

(b) RZFBZRAF=ZA=Z+-B ARATREERRZERHE® 10,902,000 (ZSFEE : BR
19,916,0007L) °
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21.

BEEBED

HETtHBEERERQS

T HhE W RE

BE_SERF-HA=+—BitFE

RECEEAN  25EENHNBALEERIIEAR  LEBHALEEE2RTIE/HENZEE -

ERSBEHEINT ¢
EERRESE
BE-_ZERE=ZA=+—HLEE

BEEE
Bz
ERX BEWR RiTR EBERE

EGEX L EHEY A RERK B HA |y

BETT BT T BEFT BET T BHETF T
B
R 453,141 109,362 42,829 112,248 717,580
AR TEHE (21,372) (2,065) (7,035) - (30,472)
SEREEE 431,769 107,297 35,794 112,248 687,108
HiE
DAREE 1,609 513 2,388 1,349 5,859
FE WA 269
AOBATWA 302
AAOBAFTEX {1,500)
BEHER 4,930
B¥ER &)
it —EEBE A AR¥E (826) - - - (826)
BR 3 B i R 4,103
HoE (339)
EEERR 3,764
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21. DEEHE)
RELES (F)

EEBRER

BE-EEMEZACY-HLEE

BEEE BRILEE
B
EIER 2R 2k EHFERE -RER SARE

BERRE ZHELE RERE B EA ES REE &g

BEFT BETFT BETT RBEFT BETFT EETI BEY¥Tx
TT '
BEEE 433462 121,109 46,560 124,477 - 1,818 727,426
ABTEEE (48,723) (1,850) (5,446) - - (824)  (56,843)
HEEE 384,739 119,259 41,414 124,477 - 994 670,583
E¥
PEEE 720 (1,668) 2,717 13,856 - 2,780 18,405
FEWA 2,523
ATELTRA 4,152
FABARHEX (1577)
EERA 23,503
HBER (22)
FiE—HBELIEE (77 - - - - - (77)
DRIEEEYH - - - - 68 948 1,016
BR ¥ A A 24,420
HE (1,557)
AEERF 22,863

Mg ABSREEZERIBEEEZ2ET SERMELT -
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2EER (8)
BREBED ()

EERESR

R-ZBEEBEAE=ZA=+—8H

HEftRBEERAR

B R AW

BE_FTZTRF=FB=+-—BLEE

£
aff

I
4

BEYE
|/
EER BT R Hiik RERE
WEHE ESHRE XRERK RHA By
BEFT E¥TT BYE¥FxT BETFT BYEFx
BE
THEE 89,683 46,312 13,015 238,064 387,074
He QTR 379 - - - 379
ROBATNEE 75,774
FEREE 463,227
=R
ol =R 35,776 25,227 9,477 - 70,480
APBELRAE 11,439
ol = 81,919
R-2ZEmNE=3=+—8
FERE BEILEE
F

ERR Bk
WEHE EREL
BETT BETx
28
NEEE 112,672 42292

BELTRR 2,239 -
AOBLAEE

RRREE

£
THEE 40,470 28,068
FNEBLIEE

EeRER

BiER EHFRE -REm EBHER
RERE R Hft E3 RZE EE
EETR BETR BETT BEFn B¥ETx

10,872 159,530 27 2,492 327,885
- - - - 2,239
142,821

472,945

5711 - 992 2,853 78,094
11,081

89,185
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21. ZEER (£)
REBED (H)

H k& #
BE-ZEREFZR=1+T-HLEFE

BEYE
R
ERR BTk BTk SHHERE
HEEE EREZE RERER Rk H At BE
BETT BETFT BEFT BETFT BY¥TFT
BREM 5,340 310 14 399 6,063
wE 3,156 711 341 473 4,681
EERRRERZ
BEREFER - - - 8,271 8,271
RERSCEERNE -~ - - 560 560
HEVE BER
REZEBR 450 - - - 450

BE-ZZONE=-R=1+-BLEFE

BEEE ERIEEE
ke
gk R R Rk ®HFRE  -KEe  SAES
BERE ERES REEX REA g5 REE 4
BETT EBEFRT EETT EETT BETR  EETRT BETR

BREMR 4,558 486 226 925 - - 6,195
e 2262 896 969 676 - ~ 4,803
HENE -BER

REzEE 58 - - - - - 58
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Hit B EERER

BB E W

P -_ZEETRF-A=+—-HAULEE

el
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PTEER ()
BRHER D
TEEEEZHETHHSRE  TEME  ESHES REENRREERT  RTERAEREE  F
BRTEAEF BRLEECENBEERIER-—RERESINEBER - UTAREE R
EEoz&HEBE oD
RHMETHEHIEER
2005 2004
BEF T % EBEF T %
EigEs) 607,118 88 516,689 77
e e 69,028 10 124,176 19
HE 10,962 2 29,718 4
687,108 100 670,583 100
THREBEE FAENYE BMERRKEFEREE2DHM
PTEEEFARER ¥ BERRERE
2005 2004 2005 2004

BEFT % BETT % BETT % BETT %
= 401,617 87 392,870 83 5,036 82 3,182 51
E3E 52,206 11 65,042 14 1,006 17 3,003 48
Hib 8,451 2 12,307 3 21 1 10 1

462,274 100 470,218 100 6,063 100 6,195 100
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2005 2004
BT T BT T
we 300 240
Fe - ZHREMBER 1,212 -
BRE 2R 8 _
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BRENFEIFHTESZESREBH300,000T (ZFFMEF | E¥240,0007T) - RBERME
BUFHTESYRRKNETHE -

EXZHESTRSBEIRTHAR :

EBAE
8 5l 2005 2004
#—8%1,000,0007T 7
7% 1,000,001 — % 1,500,0007T 1 -
8 7

Woh s LERBZESEHME DR (CEENE NF ESNELERLTHAWEIE16,621,000
A(ZEFMF BR15259,000) cHMEFARUEKRZRAAREAWELR (BEALAKE) FH
Z RS o

MBERKZERAFAGZEHE  URFHHEHLAT  BLAEROARFMENEQADZBEHELHE -
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BESEALZHE OF - (STIOE MEK-ARIE SPRNF SN RRALZ
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2005 2004

EEFT BT

F5 RUREEEN 4,409 3,354
BRE 2 H#R 189 215

4,598 3,569
BES(CEENE  ER)BSHEATTREENSBTHAR -

AH

A 5l 2005 2004
#—8%1,000,0007T 3 5
#%1,000,001 T — &% 1,500,0007T 2 -

EEEA
R-IBZLF=ZA=ZT—R " —HEBIMBELRACHREAFENLBRES 163000 2 XEWE (=
Z2ME : BH8,070,0005T) FE T - LIS -—RUERTERRE -

AR
R-ZZBZEF=ZA=+—8 ZT2EFRUTIARAER:

(i) EMBLAENMRITEEMAEL2ER » £E¥3,172 0000 (Z 2 ME : B 43,102,000
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(i) RHWELIABHNFHEFRAEE650,000T (ZFFWEF @ B%¥2,053,000T) °
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a) ZEERFLFEREBRA
REER RERTIHHBORZATRFECLEENEY  TRERFLFAAARXINVER
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ZERERSWNT
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2005 2004 2005 2004
BEFT BYTFT BYETFT EBHT T
BR—FR 3,655 3,356 - 92
E-ZRER
(BREFEME) 83 - - -

3,738 3,356 - 92

BEHCBRER BB T HEEAWE -

(o) FTEEERLEAA
FrEREMELUCEEHAEE - REYXBHEANERIBLFEEUENZIRE - BB
SHEFPAIRATIHEBZTIIH2EEMEY  ZEER—FRUTKURz2REESAEY
360,000t (ZEZF & © E%135,0005T) °

ERESE

AADZERENE (BHBDRE-SE-FAR-TERBZRERERESA  ZEAND
BSREARGMERAT QA 2B YHBHSREFEREFAARERGZEENF OB N
RASALAARERRIEZE - ZHBBR-B--FNATABER -

REBZTERHMT A RHECBRENROLB T EEEACTIERITRONBRUMERL TR
FrEIE 0% ([EHEIRERA)) - IRBRRMEE TRRFERERE MR I0%REFLESN
BzRE EERLAMRTEZBERERZBTEMRTZRZROLE  FTEEBAQXTRH
ERITZRMI0% -  REFRQARETEBRR 2B E  REA-EFERFEARAMIALZ
BRERCBEFASEUERAQACHTZRE 1%  RFENESE - TRRAAZERRZE -
BRRESEER AR TEBZBIF A TESHE HECETERRIABUFHTESARK
EXRRMMHEATROZERE  SEREERUAPLET-EAARBERETECRERSER
ZEBREMBIREFRTZACARGELET LA ZERITRAEO0.1%R 42 /E B ## 8% 5,000,000
o ARFRARETERZRRELEME
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FHBRRRATHBAAZENBRAEMEETE  ESTERERERELDE > EEHR
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ZHEE UBEERE-

BERAZSTEE - LESIHBRE-

R EF

SERABAEHEZ () REERAFTHFEI TM2BERMKE (HEI2BEFHD R (D)
REZZESEF+ A -PRBEBETRARER RN AES 8 (BB ETHE]) - &
BEEYHERILCARERERE - ARSTEREBRERESTHETHE A —RNEEE  BEHE
ALEETENEISHREBESTE - MERZEREFT A -ARUBRARZES  AIF2H
BEEE -

BREFEH-EIREENHAEIREEEBARNS%R LIRABBE 20,000 & -
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PESHERENERERASSHETERBEZEXIEHMG  THFEAEENREEZEHREZE - B
EEENNEE HBY206,000T (ZEZMFE . BH#569,0005T) °
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28. EHEALRSB
BEREESHEAE-TH  FREZELZERLFDETEBNENE - BEQ2ARAEZH R
EHPERBREAL  FREEZSQ2TNIERZFHINT ¢

(a) AFLTRAL(FBERLYP(ELEE])  BHETER2EREEZ2ENMBLACENH
FRZZEZNFZACHN\BERZEERBMEE  BALTTERBE-EZTLF=RA=
+-BLEER RELAME S  EFHBEE - ASRYXCTERBTEEE - R
BE2mEE FTRECEIMELIRN ARB2FEEEZ05% T TFTEHIEBEREER
BER THERE-EFLFZAZT-ALFER REZEBSEXNTRHIEBEZEHEE
HEW2775000T (ZEFWMEF 1 BH2376,000T) - ZEERBGRECER —F

(b) HEEFEERN FZEEETEREIRBRZEHWEBLAAEEESHRBLERBREEMER WE
SHBY10,241,0000 (Z BB E  B%4,492,0007T) °

(c) REEER FEEHANEHEEEHESEN3,828000T (ZFEMF : B13,488,0007T)
THHTIERZEERTZMEBLAR  FAETAEEZZHM - ;

(d) REFER ~EBANEEZNERER D54 E%2,054,000 (2B MF : }B%4,167,000
L) RAB#T34,800L (ZBFMEF @ BH1483,0008) F—HHETERZEHEEHNELRR
LR WA REREBREZRE

RIEBEBLF=ZA=Z1+—H BRINLAXEFELE2ERARIH  FEEHERERLAZE
WHIEAEBHY711,000T (=SS M E © BH8245,0007%) °

BREish RAFER FAEERE-MBEQSDHEEE1,180,000T - HEFZAAR-EZHE
ZR=ZT-BZ2BRBREAEHE1.000T (ZTFWE  B%2215,0005T) °

EEHBRERAAZENRERBE CARIRRAERR - THFLE - AZ 2R - FRAAE
FERER  HEFIEARRDEE -

28. FEN#=ER
RZEZRFRBZTH  ZEBELULKREEN205,000,0005T Y & Pacific Coffee (Holdings) Limited
([Pacific Coffeel) 2R BTRA - EHh{EFE%60,000,000TBEITHE - KW H - HEPacific
Coffeex EE - EERAAL B2 FREECEEE NI EREESSHMAREER Y
BRE -

Pacific Coffee T ENRBNHEREZIREL MBS -
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ER2F

Chevalier iTech (S} Pte. Ltd.

Chevalier iTech
Thai Limited®

Chevelier Network
Solutions Thai Limited
(%1 % Chevalier Telecom
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Event Date
Announcement of Interim Resuits 10th December, 2004
Announcement of Final Results 13th July, 2005
Book Close Dates

Interim Dividend ‘ 3rd to 7th January, 2005

Final Dividend 22nd to 26th August, 2005
Annual General Meeting 9th September, 2005
Payment of Dividends

Interim dividend of HK1 cent per share 14th January, 2005

Final dividend of HK1 cent per share 13th September, 2005
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CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Financial Summary

(amounts expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

The following is a summary of the total assets, total liabilities, share capital and results of the Group for
the five years ended 31st March, 2005.

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

Financials ($ Million)

Total assets 549 501 466 473 463
Total liabilities 138 116 102 89 82
Minority interests 0.18 0.18 0.19 0.17 0.17
Shareholders’ funds 411 385 364 384 381
Share capital* 171 171 171 171 171

(No. of shares issued — in Million)

Turnover 1,055 775 688 671 687
Profit (loss) for the year 8 (9) (23) 23 4
Per Share Basis™ (§)

Earnings (loss) 0.05 (0.05) (0.13) 0.13 0.02
Dividends 0.10 0.05 - 0.05 0.02

Net asset value (at book value) 2.40 2.25 212 2.24 2,23

* The calculations for the years ended 31st March, 2001 to 2003 have been adjusted for the consolidation of

every five of the Company's ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each into one ordinary share of HK$0.50 each in June
2003.
TURNOVER ($ Million) PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR ($ Million)
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CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Chairman’s Statement

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION : -
AND ANALYSIS

The overall performance of the Group

during the year under review paled when

compared with the previous year. A net
profit of HK$3.8 million was recorded
compared with HK$22.9 million last year.
The major setback was the write-down of
certain direct investment due to the
impairment in value and the unrealized
loss arising from marking to market the

value of fixed income investment.

Turnover of the Computer and Business
Machines Division grew 12.2% to
HK$432 million and segment operating
profit increased 123% to HK$1.6 million.
Although the sales of computer
equipment grew 25%, it was lower than
expected as a result of the business

machine market shrinking. The general

economic recovery did not appear to

have produced a strong enough drive for  pr Cho Yei Ching
Chai
the traditional business machine sector. airman
The demand for computer equipment, however, kept on growing prompted by the introduction of new

notebook computers at attractive prices.

Toshiba AV Notebook Computer E-studio 4511 Digital Colour Copier OK! Colour Laser Printer
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CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Chairman’s Statement

The results of the Network Solutions and Telecommunication Systems Division greatly improved during
the year under review. Although turnover recorded a mild decrease from HK$119 million to HK$107
million, the Division turned in profit of HK$0.5 million compared with the HK$1.7 million loss last year.

During the year, the division was awarded several major contracts which included:

1. a 2-year contract for ELV Maintenance Service of One IFC
and the Southern Podium of IFC Mall and Two IFC Podium
Shopping Mall;

2. a contract for the design, supply and installation of CCTV
Video Storage Solution for MTRC at Two IFC;

3. a 2-year contract for the supply, installation, commissioning
and maintenance of the Toshiba Business Telephone System
and adjunct products for various HKSAR government

departments;

4. the provision of NEC PABX and Peripheral Products to

Television Broadcasts Limited’s New TV City in Tseung Kwan

0O; and PABX System Solution for six-star hotel —
Four Seasons Hotel

5. the provision of residential wireless LAN systems to TownGas Telecom.
After experiencing continued downturn during past years, the performance of the Technical and Maintenance

Services Division has stabilized with the economy on general recovery. The Division will continue to

strive to deliver high quality service to the customers and tightly control its operating expenses.

Mr Mark Leigh, President of AVAYA Asia Pacific, visited

Chevalier’s Thailand Office — the largest IP Telephony project in Asia Pacific in
2004
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CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Chairman’s Statement

The investment market was volatile during the year, which led to a decline in both turnover and profit of
the Group’s investment segment. To minimize risk and maximize return, the Group's investment portfolio
is weighed more heavily on high-rate structured deposits and debentures. The Group will continue to

handle its cash on hand with prudence.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Group acquired the entire
issued share capital of Pacific Coffee (Holdings) Limited (“Pacific Coffee”)
at a total consideration of HK$205 million of which HK$60 million was
financed by bank borrowings. Pacific Coffee is engaged in the business of
trading and retailing of coffee products and operation of coffee shops.

The acquisition was completed on 20th May, 2005 and a circular dated

30th June, 2005 was sent to the shareholders of the Company. Pacific
Coffee now operates 39 retail outiets in Hong Kong and 6 in Singapore,
all of which sell premium roasted whole bean coffees, speciality coffees and coffee-related hardware and
supplies. Pacific Coffee also sells its branded products to wholesale accounts and provides coffee services
to corporate customers. Besides enabling the Group to capture the fast growing and lucrative specialty
coffee business in Hong Kong, the PRC and neighbouring countries, the Board sees the acquisition as

another critical move of the Group to diversify its businesses and broaden its income stream.

PROSPECTS

Global economic growth is expected to moderate in 2005 after the strong surge in 2004. In the US, rising
interest rates are expected to slow down economic growth. The recent rises in oil price may also have
negative impact on global economic growth. In the Mainland, the macroeconomic control measures
implemented by the government to curb excessive investment are expected to cap economic growth rate.
While the Hong Kong economy clearly saw an upturn in 2004, the economy remains extremely sensitive
to outside factors. In view of the above, the Group will continue to focus on boosting its profitability. It will
work on the top line as well as continue to improve its cost and expense structure and overall business

efficiency.

The Group is at a turning point in 2005 after years of internal efforts to streamline its businesses and the
recent entry into the lifestyle food and beverage market. While the IT business is improving, the latest
acquisition of Pacific Coffee has opened the Group to lucrative new business opportunities. The fast
growing specialty coffee business is expected to fuel the Group’s recurrent income as it starts to generate

turnover and profit contribution to the Group in the coming financial year.
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CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Chairman’s Statement

Going forward, the Group sees abundant
opportunities for its existing core businesses
and its new food and beverage business in
Hong Kong, the PRC and other neighbouring
countries. Staffed by well-experienced
professionals and armed with top-notch
expertise, the Group is well positioned to seize
those opportunities. We will continue to do our
best in meeting our customers’ needs, drive
profitability growth and create shareholders’

value. Our goal is to evolve into a more

customer- and market-driven company.

Pacific Coffee shop at Festival Walk

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to thank the management and all staff for

their concerted effort, commitment and professionalism.

CHOW Yei Ching

Chairman

Hong Kong, 13th July, 2005
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CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Financial Review

As at 31st March, 2005, the Group's total net asset amounted to approximately HK$381 million (2004:
HK$384 million), a decrease of HK$3 million or 1% when compared with 2004.

Total debt to equity ratio was 0.03% (2004: 0.04%) and net debt to equity ratio was nil (2004: Nil), which
are expressed as a percentage of bank and other borrowings, and net borrowings respectively, over the
total net asset of HK$381 million (2004: HK$384 million).

At the balance sheet date, the Group's bank and other borrowings amounted to HK$121,000 (2004:
HK$151,000). Cash and deposit at bank amounted to HK$90 million (2004: HK$64 million) and there are
no net borrowings for the two years.

Finance costs for the year amounted to HK$1,000 (2004: HK$22,000), a decrease of HK$21,000 as
compared with 2004,

The Company has provided guarantees in respect of loan facilities granted to subsidiary companies
amounting to HK$3,172,000 (2004: HK$3,102,000).

The Group adopts conservative treasury policies in cash and financial management. To achieve better
risk control and minimise cost of funds, the Group's treasury activities are centralised. Cash is generally
placed in short-term deposits mostly denominated in Hong Kong or US dollars. The Group's liquidity and
financing requirements are frequently reviewed. In anticipating new investments or maturity of bank
loans, the Group will consider new financing while maintaining an appropriate {evel of gearing.
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CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Schedule of the Major Properties

Particulars of major properties held by the Group as investment properties/properties for own use are as

follows:

Location

Thailand

No.540 Bamrungmuang Road,
Debsirin Sub-district,
Pomprab District,
Bangkok Metropolis

Condominium Unit,
Room No0.17/353,
Soi Sukhumvit 4 (Nana-Tai},
Sukhumvit Road,
Klongton Subdistrict,
Klongtoey District,
Bangkok Metropolis

Unit No.303,
3rd Floor, Silom Complex,
Silom Road, Bangrak District,
Bangkok

Unit No.40-41,
Fortune Town Department Store,

Usage

Office
and showroom

Staff quarters

Shop

Shop

2nd Floor, Ratchaddapisek Road,

Din Dang District, Bangkok

The Mainland China

Units 4, 5, 6 and 7 of 18th Floor,
Dongshan Plaza,
Guangzhou,
Guangdong Province

Units B and F, 18th Floor,
Kam Lai Square, Shanghai

Hong Kong

Unit 5 of 3rd Floor,
Elite Industrial Centre,
833 Cheung Sha Wan Road,
Kowloon

23rd Floor, No. 88 Lockhart Road,
Wanchai

Office

Staff quarters

Service centre

Service centre

Approximate
gross

floor area
sq.ft.

21,300

900

760

580

7,200

1,800

1,660

2,010

Lease Group’s
term interest

%

Freehold 100
Freehold 100
Short 100
Short 100
Medium 100
Long 100
Medium 100
Medium 100
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CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Report of the Directors

The Directors present to shareholders their annual report together with the audited financial statements
of the Company and of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2005.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding while the principal activities of its principal
subsidiaries and associate are shown on pages 53 and 54 and note 12 to the financial statements
respectively.

The Group’s turnover and profit from operations for the year ended 31st March, 2005 analysed by
business and geographical segments are set out in note 21 to the financial statements.

Resulis eand Apprepriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2005 are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 20. An interim dividend of HK1 cent per share was paid on Friday, 14th January, 2005.
The Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK1 cent per share.

Share Capital

Movements in the Company’s share capital during the year are set out in note 19 to the financial
statements.

Share Opfion Scheme

Particulars of the share option scheme to subscribe for shares in the Company during the year are set
out in note 26 to the financial statements.

Reserves
Movements in reserves during the year are set out in note 20 to the financial statements.

Investment Properties
Movements in investment properties during the year are set out in note 9 to the financial statements.

Property, Plant end Equipment

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are set out in note 10 to the financial
statements.

Financial Summary
A financial summary of the Group is shown on page 2.

Majer Customers and Suppliers

The five largest suppliers accounted for 84% of the Group's purchases for the year whereas the five
largest customers accounted for 31% of the Group’s sales for the year. The largest supplier and the
largest customer accounted for 76% and 11% of the Group’s purchases and sales respectively. None of
the Directors, their associates nor any shareholder (whom to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers or
five largest customers,

Majer Properiies
Particulars of the major properties of the Group as at 31st March, 2005 are set out in page 9.
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CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Report of the Directors

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31st March, 2005, the Group employed approximatety 570 full time staff globally. Total staff costs
amounted to approximately HK$79 million for the year ended 31st March, 2005. The remuneration policies
are reviewed periodically on the basis of the nature of job, market trend, company performance and
individual performance. Other staff benefits include bonuses awarded on a discretionary basis, medical
schemes, retirement schemes and employees’ share option scheme.

Denatieons
During the year, the Group made donations of HK$439,000 to charitable bodies.

Principal Subsidiaries and Associate

Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries and associate of the Group are set out in pages 53 and 54
and note 12 to the financial statements respectively.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Bye-laws although there are no
restriction against such rights under the laws in Bermuda where the Company is incorporated.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of listed securities of the Company by the Company or any of
its subsidiaries during the year.

Directors
The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Dr CHOW Yei Ching (Chairman)

Mr FUNG Pak Kwan (Managing Director)

Mr KUOK Hoi Sang

Mr KAN Ka Hon

Mr CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar (Appointed on 18th April, 2005)
Miss Lily CHOW

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr Shinichi YONEHARA

Mr WU King Cheong

Mr KWONG Man Sing (Appointed on 30th September, 2004)

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Messrs Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar and Kwong Man Sing shall
retire from office at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election. The Independent Non-Executive Directors are subject to the same retirement requirements as
the Executive Directors.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Messrs CHOW Yei Ching, FUNG Pak Kwan, KUOK Hoi Sang, KAN Ka Hon, CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar and
Shinichi YONEHARA are interested in certain contracts in that they are the Directors and/or have beneficial
interests in Chevalier International Holdings Limited (*CIHL"). Details of these contracts are more fully
disclosed in the section “Connected Transactions” below.

Save as aforementioned, no other contract of significance to which the Company or its holding company

or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a director had a material interest
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Report of the Directors

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

During the year, none of the Directors have an interest in any business constituting a competing business
to the Group.

Conneclted Transactions

The Group has from time to time conducted transactions with CIHL and its subsidiaries (the “CIHL
Group”) which are “connected persons” for the purposes of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”). The Stock
Exchange had granted a waiver on 2nd April, 1997 to the Company from strict compliance with the
requirements as stipulated in Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules on connected transactions. Pursuant to the
waiver, details of the following connected transactions which have been entered into between certain
subsidiaries of CIHL and the Group in the ordinary and usual course of business were not required to be
disclosed by press notice and/or circular nor is the Company required to obtain prior independent
shareholders’ approval on each occasion when they arise:

The following properties were leased to the Group by the wholly-owned subsidiaries of CIHL at commercial

rates:
Date of Rental for
Landlord Agreement Terms Premises the period
(HKS)
Union Pearl 1st January, 2003 2 years Portion of 20th Floor of 68,584
Development commencing from Chevalier Commercial Centre,
Limited 1st January, 2003 8 Wang Hoi Road,
Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong
Peak Gain 1st January, 2003 2 years Portion of 8th, 7th, 8th, 9th, 10th 1,605,498
Limited commencing from and 11th Floors of

1st January, 2003 Chevalier Engineering Service Centre,
21 Sheung Yuet Road,

Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong

During the year, rentals for the aforesaid two Tenancy Agreements (the “Former Tenancy Agreements”)
amounting to approximately HK$1.67 million was paid to CIHL Group.

Announcement was published on 3rd November, 2004 regarding the early termination of the Former
Tenancy Agreements with effect from 30th September, 2004 and the new tenancy agreements were
entered into with CIHL Group.

During the year ended 31st March, 2005, the Company has in effect the continuing connected transactions
set out below which are non-exempt continuing connected transactions under the revised Listing Rules
which came into effect on 31st March, 2004 (the “New Listing Rules”). The following new tenancy
agreements (the “New Tenancy Agreements”) were entered into by Chevalier (OA) Holdings Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company as tenant with the following subsidiaries of CIHL as landlord(s).
Details of the transactions are set out as follows:—

Landlord

Winfield
Development
Limited

Peak Gain
Limited

Oriental Sharp
Limited

Date of

Agreement Terms

30th September, 2004 2 years
commencing from
1st October, 2004

30th September, 2004 2 years
commencing from
1st October, 2004

30th September, 2004 2 years
commencing from
1st October, 2004

Rental for
Premises the period
{HK3)
Portion of 3rd Floor of 300,852
Chevalier Warehouse Building,
1 On Fuk Street, On Lok Tsuen,
Fanling, New Territories, Hong Kong
Portion of 6th, 7th, 8th, 9th 1,785,696
and 10th Floors of Chevalier Engineering
Service Centre, 21 Sheung Yuet Road,
Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong
Portion of 19th and 22nd Floors 67,740

of Chevalier Commercial Centre,
8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay,
Hong Kong

During the year, rentals for the New Tenancy Agreements amounting to approximately HK$2.15 million
was paid to CIHL Group.
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CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Report of the Directors

Announcement was published on 3rd November, 2004 regarding the New Tenancy Agreements in
accordance with the New Listing Rules. The Transactions were subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements under Rule 14A.34 of the New Listing Rules and were exempted from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the New Listing Rules. The Company had
complied with the reporting and announcement requirements set out in Rules 14A.37 to 14A.40 and
Rules 14A.45 to 14A .47 of the New Listing Rules.

All the continuing connected transactions under the Former Tenancy Agreements and the New Tenancy
Agreements (the “Transactions”) were entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
respective companies after due negotiations on an arm’s length basis with reference to the prevailing
market conditions.

The Transactions have been reviewed by the Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company. The
Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company have confirmed that the continuing connected
transactions have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(ii) either on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient comparable transactions to judge
whether they are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the Group than
terms available to/from independent third parties;

(i)  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such transactions; and

(iv)  on terms which are fair and reascnable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as
a whole.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in Securities

As at 31st March, 2005, the interests and short pasitions of the Directors and the chief executives of the
Company in the share, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations,
within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“the SFQ"), which have been
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be recorded in the register to be kept by the Company
pursuant to S352 of the SFO or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (“the
Model Code”) were as follows:

(a) Interests in the Company - Shares

Number of ordinary shares

Approximate

Name of Personal Corporate percentage of
Directors Capacity interests interests Total interest
(%)
CHOW Yei Ching Beneficial owner 6,815,854 86,994,833* 93,810,787 54.75
and Interest of
controlled

corporation

FUNG Pak Kwan Beneficial owner 2,580,000 - 2,580,000 1.5
KUOK Hoi Sang Beneficial owner 2,400,000 - 2,400,000 1.4
KAN Ka Hon Beneficial owner 451,200 - 451,200 0.26

Shinichi YONEHARA Beneficial owner 500 - 600 0.00035
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CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Report of the Directors

* Dr CHOW Yei Ching has notified the Company that under the SFO, he was deemed to be interested in
86,994,933 shares of the Company which were held by CIHL as Dr Chow beneficially owned 144,146,359
shares in CIHL, representing approximately 51.74% of the issued share capital of CIHL. Dr Chow was
deemed to be interested in these shares under the SFO and these shares were same as those shares
disclosed in the section “Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Securities” below.

(b) Interests in Associated Corporation — Shares

Number of ordinary shares

Approximate

Name of Associated Personal percentage of
Directors corporation Capacity interests Total interest (%)
CHOW Yei Ching CIHL Beneficial owner 144,146,359 144,146,359 51.74
FUNG Pak Kwan CIHL Beneficial owner 93,479 93479 0.03
KUOK Hoi Sang CIHL Beneficial owner 98,216 98,216 0.04
KAN Ka Hon CIHL Beneficial owner 29,040 29,040 0.01
Shinichi YONEHARA CIHL Beneficial owner 1,671 1,671 0.0006

Save as disclosed above and in “Share Option Schemes” below, as at 31st March, 2005, so far as is
known to the Directors and the chief executives of the Company, no other person has interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which are required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he is taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO); or are
required, pursuant to S352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein, or are required,
pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Share Option Schemes

A share option scheme of the Company (“the CiTL Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders of CIHL
and shareholders of the Company on 20th September, 2002. Another share option scheme of CIHL (“the
CIHL Scheme"”) was also approved by the shareholders of CIHL on 20th September, 2002. The CiTL
Scheme and the CIHL Scheme fully comply with Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. During the year, no
share option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the CiTL Scheme and the CIHL Scheme.
There was no outstanding option under the CiTL Scheme and the CIHL Scheme at the beginning and at
the end of the year.

Directors’ Service Coniracts

No Director offering for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

Meaenagement Contracts

Apart from the management agreement entered into with CIHL Group as set out in note 28(a) to the
financial statements, no other contract of significance concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company or any of its subsidiaries was entered
into or subsisted during the year.
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CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Report of the Directors

Directors’ Biographies

Executive Directors

Dr CHOW Yei Ching, Chairman, aged 69, is the founder of Chevalier Group. He is the Chairman and
Managing Director of CIHL, a public listed company in Hong Kong and a substantial shareholder of the
Company. He is also an Independent Non-Executive Director of Van Shung Chong Holdings Limited and
Shaw Brothers (Hong Kong) Limited and a Non-Executive Director of Television Broadcasts Limited. In
1995, Dr Chow was awarded with an Honorary Doctor Degree in Business Administration by The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and an Honorary University Fellow by The University of Hong Kong. In 1996
and 1997, he was appointed as an Honorary Member of the Board of Directors by Nanjing University and
was conferred an Honorary Degree of Doctor of Laws by The University of Hong Kong respectively. Dr
Chow also serves actively in a number of educational advisory committees and gives substantial support
to the aforementioned two Universities in Hong Kong and The Hong Kong University of Science &
Technology in areas of researches and developments. He is also a Consultative Professor of Zhejiang
University and a Lecture Professor of Sichuan Union University in the PRC. Dr Chow’s enthusiasm in
public services is evidenced in his appointment in 2001 as the Vice Patron of The Community Chest in
Hong Kong. He was also appointed as the Honorary Consul of The Kingdom of Bahrain in Hong Kong in
2001. He also actively participates in various professional bodies and associations on fraternal and
Chinese affairs. To name a few, he is a Standing Committee Member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consuitative Conference, Shanghai, the President of The Japan Society of Hong Kong and the Chairman
of the National Taiwan University-HK Alumni Association, etc. In recognition of his contributions to local
and overseas societies alike, Dr Chow was awarded honorable decorations from Britain, Belgium, France
and Japan. Furthermore, Dr Chow was also awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star from the Government of the
HKSAR in 2004. He is the father of Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar and Miss Lily Chow, Executive Directors
of the Company. Dr Chow is a director of Chevalier (HK) Limited (“CHK”) and Firstland Company Limited
(“Firstland”) which are the wholly-owned subsidiaries of CIHL and the substantial shareholders of the
Company. CHK, Firstland and CIHL have a discloseable interest in the capital of the Company under the
SFO.

Mr FUNG Pak Kwan, Managing Director, aged 53, joined Chevalier Group in 1974 and is a Director of
CIHL, a public listed company in Hong Kong and a substantial shareholder of the Company. He is the
Advisor of the executive committee of the Guangdong Federation of Industry & Commerce and Guangdong
Chamber of Commerce. Mr Fung is responsible for Chevalier Group’s strategic planning and management
of operations of subsidiaries which focus on a wide range of voice and data communication equipment
and services, system integrated IT solutions as well as the sale of business machines, computer systems
and equipment, telephone systems and relevant after-sales services. He also actively involves in the
planning of investment and development projects, environmental engineering, automobile and hotel
business in North America of the Chevalier Group. Mr Fung is a director of CHK and Firstiand which are
the wholly-owned subsidiaries of CIHL and the substantial shareholders of the Company. CHK, Firstland
and CIHL have a discloseable interest in the capital of the Company under the SFO.

Mr KUOK Hoi Sang, Director, aged 55, joined Chevalier Group in 1972 and is the Managing Director of
CIHL, a public listed company in Hong Kong and a substantial shareholder of the Company. He is the
President of The Lift and Escalator Contractors Association in Hong Kong, the Vice-Chairman of the Hong
Kong - China Branch of The International Association of Elevator Engineers and a Registered Lift and
Escalator Engineer in Hong Kong. He is @ member of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference,
Guangzhou. Mr Kuok has extensive experience in business development and is responsible for the
strategic planning and management of the operations of lifts and escalators, building construction, building
materials and supplies, aluminium works, electrical and mechanical services, civil engineering, property
development as well as investment projects of the Chevalier Group. Mr Kuok is a director of CHK and
Firstland which are the wholly-owned subsidiaries of CIHL and the substantial shareholders of the Company.
CHK, Firstland and CIHL have a discloseable interest in the capital of the Company under the SFO.

Mr KAN Ka Hon, Director and Company Secretary, aged 54, joined Chevalier Group in 1986 and is a
Director and Company Secretary of CIHL, a public listed company in Hong Kong and a substantial
shareholder of the Company. He is an Independent Non-Executive Director of Victory City International
Holdings Limited and Asia Alliance Holdings Limited. He is responsible for management of the Chevalier
Group’s accounting and treasury, corporate finance, investment, pension fund and company secretarial
activities. Mr Kan holds a Bachelor Degree in Science from The University of Hong Kong and is a fellow
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the U.K. and a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr Kan is a director of CHK and Firstland which are the
wholly-owned subsidiaries of CIHL and the substantial shareholders of the Company. CHK, Firstland and
CIHL have a discloseable interest in the capital of the Company under the SFO.
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Mr CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar, Director, aged 31, joined Chevalier Group in 2000 and is a Director of CIHL,
a public listed company in Hong Kong and a substantial shareholder of the Company. He is responsible
for the pipe technologies business, building services business and investments of the Chevalier Group.
Mr Chow holds a degree in Master of Engineering from the University of Oxford, U.K. He is currently the
Chairman of the Industry and Technology Committee of the Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce,
a council member of the Hong Kong Productivity Council and the Internet Professionals Association, an
Advisory council of The Better Hong Kong Foundation, a registered manager of Yan Chai Hospital No.2
Secondary School and an Honorary Chairman of the Taiwan Business Association (HK) Ltd. He is the son
of Dr Chow Yei Ching, the Chairman of the Company and is also a brother of Ms Lily Chow, an Executive
Director of the Company. Dr Chow Yei Ching is a director of CHK and Firstland which are the wholly-
owned subsidiaries of CIHL and the substantial shareholders of the Company. CHK, Firstland and CIHL
have a discloseable interest in the capital of the Company under the SFO.

Miss Lily CHOW, Director, aged 42, joined Chevalier Group in 1990. She is responsible for strategic
planning and business development of the Group. She is also a member of Guangdong Provincial
Committee of Chinese People’s Consultative Conference, Committee of Taiwan, Hong Kong, Macau and
Overseas of the Zhejing Provincial Committee of Chinese People’s Political Conference and Shanghai
Women’s Federation Committee. She holds a Bachelor Degree and is the daughter of Dr CHOW Yei
Ching, the Chairman of the Company and is also a sister of Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar, an Executive
Director of the Company.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr Shinichi YONEHARA, aged 54, was appointed to the Board in 2001. He is a graduate of Keio
University, Japan. Mr Yonehara joined Mitsui & Co., Ltd in 1974 and retired in January 2001. He was
appointed General Manager for Machinery Division of Mitsut & Company (Hong Kong) Limited from 1983
to 1992. Mr Yonehara is well-experienced in aircraft, telecommunications and IT businesses.

Mr WU King Cheong, aged 54, was appointed to the Board in October, 2002. He is an Executive Director
of Lee Cheong Gold Dealers Limited. He is also a Councillor of the Eastern District Council of the
HKSAR, Assistant Treasurer of the Chinese General Chamber of Commerce, Member of Statistics Advisory
Board of the HKSAR and Member of Hong Kong Housing Authority, as well as the Honorary Permanent
President of the Chinese Gold and Silver Exchange Society and the Hong Kong Stockbrokers Association.
He is also an Independent Non-Executive Director of Yau Lee Holdings Limited, Henderson Land
Development Company Limited, Henderson Investment Limited, Miramar Hotel and Investment Co., Ltd.
and Hong Kong Ferry (Holdings) Company Limited, all of which are companies listed on the Stock
Exchange.

Mr KWONG Man Sing, aged 59, was appointed to the Board in 2004. He is a professional accountant and
also holds a Bachelor degree of Applied Science in Electrical Engineering of University of Toronto. He is
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the Canadian
Institute of Chartered Accountants. Mr Kwong was with PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified Public
Accountants for more than 32 years, of which he was an audit partner since 1980 until he retired from the
firm on 30th June 2002.

Reftirement Schemes

The Company and its Hong Kong subsidiaries were participating companies in the Chevalier Group Staff
Provident Fund Scheme (“the Scheme”) as defined in the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance
which is a defined contribution retirement scheme. The Scheme was granted exemption from Mandatory
Provident Fund regulations by the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority and shall not open to
new members starting from 1st December, 2000. Certain of the Company’s overseas subsidiaries contribute
to their local government’s central pension pians for their employees. Contributions to the Scheme are
made by both the employers and the employees at the rate of 3.5% to 16% on the employees’ salaries.
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Pursuant to Government legislation, Bank Consortium Trust Company Limited was selected by the Group
as an alternative Mandatory Provident Fund ("MPF") service provider for employees of the Group who
join the Group from 1st December, 2000. The MPF is available to the employees aged 18 to 65 and with
at least 60 days of service under the employment of the Group in Hong Kong. Contributions are made by
the Group at 5% based on the staff’'s relevant income at a maximum of HK$20,000 per month. The
benefits are required by law to be preserved until the retirement age of 65.

The Group's total contributions to these schemes charged to the consolidated income statement during
the year amounted to HK$3,917,000 against which the forfeited contributions amounting to HK$206,000
have been deducted. There were forfeited contributions amounting to HK$70,000 available at the year
end date for the reduction of future employer’s contributions.

Substantial Sharchelders’ Interests in Securities

As at 31st March, 2005, so far as is known to the Directors and the chief executives of the Company, the
interests and short positions of the persons or corporations in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which have been disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO and as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under S336 of the
SFO were as follows:

Approximate

Number of percentage

Substantial Shareholders shares held of interest

(%)

CHOW Yei Ching 93,810,787 (Notes 1 and 3) 5475

MIYAKAWA Michiko 93,810,787 (Notes 2 and 3) 54.75

CIHL 86,994,933 (Note 3) 50.77

CHK 13,471,200 (Note 3) 7.86

Firstland 13,471,200 (Note 3) 7.86
Notes:

1. Under the SFO, these shares were held by Dr Chow as (i) personal interests of 6,815,854, (ii) corporate

interests of 86,994,933 in which Dr Chow was deemed to be interested.
2. Under Part XV of the SFO, Ms Miyakawa Michiko, the spouse of Dr Chow, was deemed to be interested in the

same parcel of 93,810,787 shares held by Dr Chow.

3. These shares were held as interest of controlled corporation through Firstland, a company incorporated in
Hong Kong and a wholly-owned subsidiary of CHK. CHK is a company incorporated in Hong Kong and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of CIHL. CIHL is a company incorporated in Bermuda. Under Part XV of the SFO,
CHK, CIHL, Dr Chow and his spouse were deemed to be interested in 13,471,200 shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March, 2005, so far as is known to the Directors and the chief
executives of the Company, no other person has interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations which were required to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under S336 of the SFO, or, were directly or
indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to
vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company.
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Arrangement for Acquisition of Shares or Debenfures

Except for the share option schemes adopted by the Company and its associated corporations, at no time
during the year was the Company or its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Avudit Commiftee

The Audit Committee, which was established pursuant to the requirements of Rules 3.21 of the Listing
Rules, comprises Messrs Shinichi YONEHARA, WU King Cheong and KWONG Man Sing (who was
appointed on 30th September, 2004), all the Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company, met
twice in the year. During the meetings, the Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the
connected transactions, interim and annual reports of the Group, the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, the auditing, internal controls and financial reporting matters including the review
of the audited financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2005.

Corporalie Gevernance

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied throughout the year ended 31st March, 2005
with the guidelines for the Code of Best Practice as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, which
was still in force prior to 1st January, 2005 and remains applicable to the year under review, save and
except that all the Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company are not appointed for any
specific terms but they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
of the Company in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(“the Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. All directors of the Company confirmed,
following specific enquiry by the Company, that they have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code for the year ended 31st March, 2005.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors, a written confirmation
of their respective independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all the Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent.

Sufficiency of Public Float

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the
Board, the percentage of the Company’s share which are in the hands of the public exceeds 25% of the
Company’'s total number of issued shares as at 25th July, 2005, the latest practicable date to ascertain
such information prior to the issue of this annual report.

Auditors

The financial statements for the year have been audited by Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who will
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

CHOW Yei Ching
Chairman

Hong Kong, 13th July, 2005
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Report of the Auditors

Deloitte.
=3

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 20 to 54 which have been prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements which give a true and
fair view. In preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate
accounting policies are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion based on our audit, on those financial statements
and to report our opinion to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Basis of opinien

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence
relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the
significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements,
and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the circumstances of the Company and the
Group, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we
considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion we also
evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
the Group as at 31st March, 2005 and of the profit and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended

and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
13th July, 2005
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Consolidated Income Statement

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2005

2005 2004

Notes HK$’000 HK$°000

Turnover 3 687,108 670,583
Cost of sales (626,233) (597,626)
Gross profit 60,875 72,957
Other operating income 1,744 8,924
Distribution costs (52,884) (52,642)
Administrative expenses (4,595) (3,757)
Other operating expenses (210) (1,979)
Profit from operations 4,930 23,503
Finance costs (&) (22)
Share of result of an associate (826) (77)
Gain on discontinued operations 4 - 1,016
Profit before taxation 5 4,103 24,420
Taxation 6 (339) (1,557)
Profit for the year 3,764 22,863
Dividend 7 3,427 8,568
Earnings per share 8 2,20 cents 13.34 cents
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2005

2005 2004
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
Non-current assets
Investment properties 9 5,160 5,160
Property, plant and equipment 10 31,405 29,042
Interests in associate 12 379 2,239
Investments in securities 13 4,440 5,000
Fixed deposit - 7,800
41,384 49,241
Current assets
inventories 14 55,262 67,069
Properties for sale, at cost 1,135 1,135
Debtors, deposits and prepayments 15 70,956 77,075
Amount due from ultimate holding company 711 245
Amounts due from customers for contract work 16 939 438
Tax recoverable 574 487
Investments in securities 13 110,815 152,769
Bank balances and cash equivalents 181,451 124,486
421,843 423,704
Current liabilities
Creditors, deposits and accruals 17 59,662 66,315
Amounts due to customers for contract work 16 199 1,322
Bills payable 695 1,721
Deferred service income 20,751 18,664
Provision for taxation 411 633
Unsecured bank overdrafts 121 151
81,839 88,806
Net current assets 340,004 334,898
Total assets less current liabilities 381,388 384,139
Non-current liability
Deferred taxation 18 80 379
Minority interests 175 174
381,133 383,586
Capital and reserves
Share capital 19 85,678 85,678
Reserves 20 295,455 297,908
381,133 383,586

The financial statements on pages 20 to 54 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 13th July, 2005 and are signed on its behalf by:

FUNG Pak Kwan CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar
Director Director
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2005 2004
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 10 121 151
Interests in subsidiaries 11 89,225 100,233
89,346 100,384
Current assets
Debtors, deposits and prepayments 715 494
Amount due from ultimate holding company 380 245
Amounts due from subsidiaries 227,288 241,044
Bank balances and cash equivalents 46,987 32,185
275,370 . 273,968
Current liabilities
Creditors, deposits and accruals 3,992 4,361
Amounts due to subsidiaries 40,696 40,950
44,688 45,311
Net current assets 230,682 228,657
320,028 329,041
Capital and reserves
Share capital 19 85,678 85,678
Reserves 20 234,350 243,363
320,028 329,041
FUNG Pak Kwan CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar

Director Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2005

2005 2004

HK$’000 HK$'000

Total equity at beginning of the year 383,586 364,234

Surplus on revaluation of properties 685 1,238
Exchange difference arising on transjation of financial

statements of overseas subsidiaries (47) (1,322)

Net gain (loss) not recognised in the consolidated income statement 638 (84)

Profit for the year 3,764 22,863

Dividends paid (6,855) (3,427)

Total equity at end of the year 381,133 383,586
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2005

2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$'000
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation 4,103 24,420
Adjustments for:
Share of result of an associate 826 77
Interest income (269) (2,523)
Interest expenses 1 22
Depreciation 4,681 4,803
Net realised and unrealised holding loss (gain)
on other investments 8,271 (6,595)
Impairment loss on investment securities 560 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 450 58
Surplus on revaluation of properties for own use (2,293) (828)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 16,330 19,434
Decrease (increase) in inventories 11,948 (8,652)
Decrease in debtors, deposits and prepayments 6,260 36,564
(Increase) decrease in amounts due from customers
for contract work (501) 806
Decrease (increase) in investments in securities 33,683 (47,316)
Decrease in bills payable (1,026) (365)
Decrease in creditors, deposits and accruals (6,720) (713)
Decrease in amounts due to customers for contract work (1,123) (3,208)
Increase (decrease) in deferred service income 2,085 (869)
Exchange difference (394) (6,323)
Cash from (used in) operations 60,542 (10,642)
Profits tax paid (1,184) (3,646)
Profits tax refunded 237 809
Interest paid (0 (22)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 59,594 (13,501)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 269 2,523
Repayment from an associate 1,034 331
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {6,063) (6,195)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,600 1,572
Withdrawal (placing) of fixed deposit 7,800 (7,800)
Disposal of an associate - 6,971
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES 4,640 (2,598)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid (6,855) (3,427)
Net advance to ultimate holding company (4686) (6,535)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (7,321) (9,962)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 56,913 (26,061)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 124,335 148,960
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates 82 1,436
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 181,330 124,335
Analysis of the balance of cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash equivalents 181,451 124,486
Bank overdrafts (121) (151)
181,330 124,335
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2005

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability. The
Company'’s ultimate holding company is Chevalier international Holdings Limited (“CIHL"), a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. Both CIHL's and the Company’s shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding whereas those of the subsidiaries
are set out in pages 53 and 54.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified for
the revaluation of certain properties and investments in securities and in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. The principal accounting policies adopted are set out
below:

(a) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries made up to 31st March each year and also incorporate the Group's
interests in associates on the basis set out in (d) below.

The results of subsidiaries and associates acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated income statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to
the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

(b) Goodwill/negative goodwill on consolidation
Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of a subsidiary or an
associate. Negative goodwill represents the excess of the Group's interest in the fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of a subsidiary or an associate at the date of acquisition
over the cost of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1st April, 2001 continues to be held in reserves, and
will be charged to the income statement at the time of disposal of the relevant subsidiary or
associate, or at such time as the goodwill {s determined to be impaired.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1st April, 2001 is capitalised and amortised on a
straight-line basis over its estimated useful life. Goodwill arising on acquisition of an associate
is included within the carrying amount of the associate. Goodwill arising on acquisition of
subsidiaries is presented separately in the balance sheet.

Negative goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1st April, 2001 continues to be held in
reserves and will be credited to income statement at the time of disposal of the relevant
subsidiary or associate.

Negative goodwill arising on acquisitions after 1st April, 2001 is presented as deduction
from assets and will be released to income statement based on an analysis of the
circumstances from which the balance resulted. Negative goodwill arising on the acquisition
of an associate is deducted from the carrying value of the associate. Negative goodwill
arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is presented separately in the balance sheet as a
deduction from assets.

(c) Subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s balance sheet at cost less any
identified impairment loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statemer

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2005

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES = continued

(d) Interests in associates
The consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share of the post-acquisition results
of its associates for the year. In the consolidated balance sheet, interests in associates are
stated at the Group’s share of the net assets of the associates.

(e) Investment properties
Investment properties are completed properties which are held for their investment potential,

any rental income being negotiated at arm’s length.

Investment properties are stated at their open market value and are revalued annually by
independent professional valuers. Any revaluation increase or decrease arising on the
revaluation of investment properties is credited or charged to the investment property
revaluation reserve unless the balance of this reserve is insufficient to cover a revaluation
decrease, in which case the excess of the revaluation decrease over the balance of the
investment property revaluation reserve is charged to the income statement. Where a
decrease has previously been charged to the income statement and a revaluation increase
subsequently arises, this increase is credited to the income statement to the extent of the
decrease previously charged.

On disposal of an investment property, the balance on the investment property revaluation
reserve attributable to that property is transferred to the income statement.

No depreciation is provided on investment properties except where the unexpired term of
the relevant lease is 20 years or iess.

(f) Property, plant and equipment
(f) Properties

Properties held for own use are stated at their revalued amount, being the fair value
on the basis of their existing use at the date of revaluation, less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any subsequent impairment losses. Revaluations are
performed with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ
materially from that would be determined using fair values at the balance sheet date.
Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of such properties is credited to the
revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the
same asset previously recognised as an expense, in which case the increase is
credited to the income statement to the extent of the decrease previously charged. A
decrease in net carrying amount arising on the revaluation of a property is dealt with
as an expense to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, on the revaluation
reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that property. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of a revalued property, the attributable revaluation surplus is transferred to
retained profits.

No depreciation is provided on freehold land. Depreciation is provided on leasehold
land over the remaining terms of the respective leases. Depreciation is provided on
the cost of the buildings on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 20
to 50 years or the remaining terms of the respective leases, whichever is the shorter.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2005

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES = continued

(f Property, plant and equipment — continued
(ii) Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of plant and equipment over their estimated
useful lives after taking into account their estimated residual values, on the reducing
balance basis, at the following rates per annum:

Initial charge Annual

upon purchase charge

Computer equipment 20% 40%
Others 20% 20%

The gain or loss arising from the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as
the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the income statement.

(9) Properties for sale
Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
comprises the cost of acquisition of properties and other direct costs. Net realisable value
is estimated by management based on prevailing market conditions or when a binding sales
agreement is executed, by reference to the agreed selling prices.

(h)  inventories
Inventories represent general merchandise and consumable stores. General merchandise
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value whereas consumable stores are
stated at cost less allowance. Cost is calculated using weighted average method.

(i) Investments in securities
Investments in securities are recognised on a trade date basis and are initially measured at
cost.

Investments other than held-to-maturity debt securities are classified as investment securities
and other investments.

Investment securities, which are securities held for an identified long-term strategic purpose,
are measured at subsequent reporting dates at cost, as reduced by any impairment loss that

is other than temporary.

Other investments are measured at fair value, with unrealised gains and losses included in
income statement for the period.
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2, PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

(j) Installation contracts
When the outcome of an installation contract can be estimated reliably, contract costs are
charged to the income statement by reference to the stage of completion of the contract
activity at the balance sheet date, as measured by the value of work carried out during the
year.

When the outcome of an installation contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract costs
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected
loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Contracts in progress are recorded in the balance sheet at the contract costs incurred plus
recognised profits less recognised losses and progress billings, and are presented in the
balance sheet as “amounts due from customers for contract work” (as an asset) or “amounts
due to customers for contract work” (as a liability), where applicable. Amounts received
before the related work is performed are included in the balance sheet as a liability. Amounts
billed for work performed on a contract but not yet paid by the customers are included in the
balance sheet under “debtors, deposits and prepayments”.

(k) Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised
as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the impairment loss is treated as revaluation decrease
under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount under another standard, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated
as a revaluation increase under that standard.

)] Revenue recognition
income from sale of goods is recognised when goods are delivered and title of the goods
has passed to the customer. Revenue is arrived at after deduction of any sales returns and
discounts.

Income from rendering of services is recognised at the time when services are rendered.
Receipts in advance of provision of services are accounted for as deferred service income.

When the outcome of an installation contract can be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised
using the percentage of completion method, measured by reference to the value of work
carried out during the period. Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments
are included to the extent that they have been agreed with the customer. When the outcome
of an installation contract cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the
extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES = continued

)] Revenue recognition — continued
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at
the interest rate applicable. :

Income from sale of securities is recognised on a trade-date basis.

Rental income and other earnings under operating leases are recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the respective lease.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the sharehoiders’ rights to receive
payment have been established.

(m) Operating leases
Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of the assets remain with
the lessors are accounted for as operating leases. Payments on assets leased by the
Group and income on property, plant and equipment of the Group leased to third parties are
dealt with in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant
lease.

(n) Retirement benefit costs
The retirement benefit costs charged in the income statement represent the contributions
paid and payable in respect of the current year to the Group’s defined contripution schemes.

(o) Foreign currency transiation

The accounting records of the Group, other than those subsidiaries not operating in Hong
Kong, are maintained in Hong Kong dollars. Transactions denominated in foreign currencies
during the year are translated at the rates of exchange ruling on the dates of transactions or
on the contracted settlement date. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the balance sheet date are re-translated into Hong Kong dollars at the rates of
exchange ruling on that date. Profits and losses arising on exchange are dealt with in the
income statement.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries and associates operating
outside Hong Kong are translated at the exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet
date. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are classified as equity and transferred to exchange
fluctuation reserve. Such translation differences are recognised as income or as expenses
in the year in which the subsidiary or associate is disposed of.

(p) Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
net profit reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years, and it further excludes income statement items
that are never taxable or deductible.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES = continued

(p) Taxation — continued

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance
sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill (or negative goodwiil) or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other asset and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is able to control reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income
statement, except when it relates items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Potential impact arising from the recently issued accounting standards

In 2004, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") issued a number
of new or revised Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(herein collectively referred to as "new HKFRSs”) which are effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1st January, 2005 and any business combinations for which the agreement date is on or
after 1st January 2005 under HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations”. The Group has not early adopted
the new HKFRSs applicable to financial statements for the year ending 31st March 2006 in the
financial statements for current year or entered into any business combination for which the
agreement date is on or after 1st January 2005. Therefore the new HKFRS 3 did not have any
impact on the Group for the year ended 31st March 2005.

The Group has commenced considering the potential impact of these new HKFRSs but is not yet in
a position to determine whether these new HKFRSs would have a significant impact on how its
results of operations and financial position are prepared and presented, These new HKFRSs may
result in changes in the future as to how the results and financial position are prepared and
presented.
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TURNOVER

Turnover represents the net amount received and receivable for goods sold, provision of services
and income from investments. An analysis of the Group’s turnover by business and geograpbhical
segment is set out in note 21.

2005 2004

HK$’000 HK$000

Sales of computer and business machines 474,243 426,348
Provision of maintenance services 100,617 119,758
Sales of investments in securities 101,988 117,217
Interest income from debt securities and other deposits 10,260 7,260
687,108 670,583

CAIN ON DISCONTINVUED OPRPERAYTIONS

Credit in last year mainly represents over-accrual of staff redundancy cost and operating lease
charges and related outgoings made in prior years on termination of the Group's operations in
trading of general merchandise of HK$68,000 and retailing of telecommunication equipment and
provision of telecommunication agency services of HK$948,000.

The results of operation and the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities of the discontinued
business included in last years’ consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Retailing of
telecommunication
equipment and provision

of telecommunication Trading of general

agency services merchandise

HK$'000 HK$000

Turnover 994 -
Other operating income 3,180 -
Operating costs (1,394) -
Profit from operations 2,780 -
Total assets 2,492 27
Total liabilities 2,853 992

The retailing of telecommunication equipment and provision of telecommunication agency services
contributed HK$4,504,000 to the Group’s last year’s net operating cash flows, contributed
HK$159,000 in respect of last year’s investing activities and used up HK$4,877,000 in respect of
last year’s financing activities.

The trading of general merchandise used up HK$1,203,000 of the Group’s last year’s net operating
cash flows and contributed HK$1,202,000 in respect of last year’s financing activities.
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5. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$°000
Profit before taxation has been arrived at after charging:
Auditors’ remuneration
Current year 830 889
Overprovision for prior year - (288)
830 601
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 4,681 4,803
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 450 58
Operating lease payments in respect of renting of premises 8,457 10,592
Staff costs (note) 78,763 80,392
Net realised and unrealised holding loss on other investments 8,271 -
Impairment loss on investment securities included
in cost of sales 560 -
Interest on bank overdrafts 1 22
and crediting:
Gross rental income from properties of HK$383,000
(2004; HK$586,000) less outgoings 275 420
Gross earnings from leasing of assets other than properties
of HK$4,795,000 (2004: HK$4,051,000) less outgoings 4,358 3,425
Net realised and unrealised holding gain on other investments ~ 6,595
Interest income from bank deposits 269 2,523
Exchange gain 971 4,035
Surplus on revaluation of properties for own use 2,293 828

Note: Details of directors’ emoluments included in staff costs are disclosed in note 22. Staff costs include an
amount of HK$729,000 (2004: HK$1,056,000) in respect of staff redundancy payments.
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TAXATION

Current taxation
Company and subsidiaries
Hong Kong
Overseas

Deferred taxation
Hong Kong (nate 18)

Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at the rate of 17.5%

2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$'000
228 748

410 430

638 1,178
(299) 379

339 1,557

estimated assessable profits less available tax relief for losses brought forward.

(2004: 17.5%) on the

Provision for overseas taxation is calculated based on the rates applicable to the relevant local

legisiation on the estimated assessable profits.

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxation per the income statement

as follows:

Profit before taxation
Less: Share of result of an associate

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 17.5%
(2004: 17.5%) (note)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised
Tax effect on other deductible temporary differences not
recognised
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating
in other jurisdictions
Others

Tax expenses of the Company and subsidiaries for the year

2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$'000
4,103 24,420
826 77
4,929 24,497
863 4,287
1,935 356
(2,208) (2,192)
2,368 1,282
(1,468) (3,092)
(1,296) 868
139 195

6 (147)

339 1,557

Note: The domestic tax rate in the jurisdiction where the operations of the Group is substantially based.
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7. DIVIDEND

2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$°000
Interim dividend paid
HK$0.01 (2004: HK$0.02) per share on 171,355,871 shares 1,714 3,427
Proposed final dividend
HK$0.01 (2004: HK$0.03) per share on 171,355,871 shares 1,713 5,141
3,427 8,568

The final dividend of HK$0.01 (2004: HK$0.03) per share has been proposed by the directors and
is subject to approval by the shareholders in general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated based on the profit for the year of HK$3,764,000 (2004:
HK$22,863,000) and on the number of ordinary shares of 171,355,871 (2004. 171,355,871) in
issue during the year.

€3
[+]

9. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

THE GROUP
2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$000
Properties situated in the Mainland China,
held under medium-term leases 5,160 5,160

Investment properties were revalued on an open market value basis on 31st March, 2005 by
independent professional valuer, DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited.

Gross rental income derived from renting of investment properties under operating leases during
the year amounted to HK$190,000 (2004: HK$419,000).
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10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Properties for own use

Hong Kong QOverseas The Mainland China Furniture, fixtures,
under under under Transmitters office equipment
medium- short- under medium- and telecom-  Machinery, and motor vehicles
term term  long-term ferm  munication  tools and for for
ease frechold lease lease lease  equipment  equipment  ownuse lease Total

HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000 HK§000  HKS00  HKSO00  HKSO000  HKS000

THE GROUP
AT COST OR VALUATION
Al st Aprit, 2004 4800 8,585 437 1680 1710 13 13,008 16,480 7,700 54,519
Additions - - - - - 2 461 529 5,01 5,083
Disposals - - - (830) - - (3,869) (4,069) (876) (9,444)
Surplus on revaluation 1,800 40 197 300 - - - - - 2337
Exchange adjustments - 5 3 - - - 28 51 21 159
Al 31sf March, 2005 6,600 8,661 837 1,350 1,710 133 9,628 12,991 11916 53,826
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
At 1st April, 2004 - - - - - 9 10,785 12,642 1,949 25,469
Charge for the year it bl 119 18 123 8 996 946 2,090 4,681
Eliminated on disposals - - - - - - (3,523 (3,652) (219 (7,384)
Eliminated on revaluation (1) (270) (119) (18) (123) - - - - {641)
Exchange adjustments - - - - - - 3% 50 2 106
Al 31st March, 2005 - - - - - 101 8,293 9,988 3,841 2221
NET BOOK VALUES
At 31st March, 2005 6,600 8,661 837 1350 1,710 2 1335 3,005 8,075 31405
At 31st March, 2004 4,800 8,585 47 1,680 1,710 38 2,223 3838 5,751 23,042
An analysis of cost or valuation of the property, plant and equipment is as follows:
Al cost - - - - - 133 9,628 12,991 11916 34,668
At 2005 professional valuation 6,600 8,661 837 1,350 1,710 - - - - 18,958
6,800 8,861 837 1,350 1,710 133 9,628 12,991 11,816 53,626

Properties were revalued on an open market value basis on 31st March, 2005 based on existing
use by independent professional valuers. Properties in Hong Kong were revalued by Messrs.
Knight Frank. Overseas properties were revalued by Sallmanns (Far East) Limited. Properties in
the Mainland China were revalued by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited.

Had these properties been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation, the carrying amount at
31st March, 2005 would have been HK$20,168,000 {(2004: HK$22,286,000).
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10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT = continved

THE COMPANY
Motor Vehicle

HK$000
AT COST
At 1st April, 2004 and 31st March, 2005 348
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
At 1st April, 2004 197
Charge for the year 30
At 31st March, 2005 227
NET BOOK VALUES
At 31st March, 2005 121
At 31st March, 2004 151

17, INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
THE COMPANY

2005 2004

HK$’'000 HK$'000

Unlisted shares, at costs less impairment loss 59,635 57,951
Amounts due from subsidiaries, net of allowances for

doubtful amounts 29,590 42,282

89,225 100,233

Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries as at 31st March, 2005 are set out in pages 53 and
54.

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of all subsidiaries would be of excessive length
and therefore, the subsidiaries as set out are those that principally affect the results or assets of

the Group.

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and interest free. The balance is classified as
non-current asset as the company has no intention to demand for repayment within one year.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end of the year.
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATE

Share of net assets
Amount due from an associate, net of allowance
for doubtful amount

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2005

THE GROUP
2005 2004
HK$°000 HK$'000
- 24
379 2,215
379 2,239

Particulars of the associate Guangzhou Chevalier iTech Limited, incorporated and is operating in

the Mainland China, as at 31st March, 2005 are as follows:

Form of business structure:
Effective % of registered capital held by a subsidiary:
Principal activities:

INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

Investment securities:
Equity securities, unlisted
Other investments:
Equity securities at market value, listed in Hong Kong
Equity securities, unlisted
Debt securities at market value, listed overseas
Debt securities, unlisted
Mutual fund, unlisted

Carrying value analysed for reporting purposes are:
Non-current
Current

Corporate

24%

Trading of office equipment and
provision of maintenance services

THE GROUP
2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$000
4,440 5,000
267 416
- 2,976
5,838 5,969
85,355 108,054
19,355 35,354
115,255 157,769
4,440 5,000
110,815 152,769
115,255 157,769
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14, INVENTORIES

THE GROUP
2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$'000
Inventories held for resale 50,156 63,455
Consumable stores 5,106 3,614
55,262 67,069

Included in the above are inventories held for resale of HK$6,940,000 (2004: HK$8,842,000)
carried at net realisable value.

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year was HK$424,252,000 (2004:
HK$381,115,000).

15, DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Included in debtors, deposits and prepayments are trade debtors of HK$52,416,000 (2004:
HK$56,650,000). An aged analysis of trade debtors as at 31st March, 2005 is as follows:

THE GROUP
2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$'000
0 - 60 days 47,891 50,455
61 - 90 days 1,871 3,298
Over 90 days 2,654 2,897
52,416 56,650

The Group has established different credit policies for customers in each of its core businesses.
The average credit period granted to trade debtors was 60 days.
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16. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT WORK

THE GROUP

2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000

Contracts in progress at the balance sheet date:
Contract costs incurred 48,626 68,151
Recognised profits less losses (6,492) (6,633)
42,134 61,518
Progress billings (41,394) (62,402)
740 (884)

Represented by:

Amounts due from customers included in current assets 939 438
Amounts due to customers included in current liabilities (199) (1,322)
740 (884)

At 31st March, 2005, retentions held by customers for contract work amounted to HK$2,305,000
(2004: HK$4,909,000). No advance payments were received from customers for contract work.

17. CREBITORS, DEPOSITS AND ACCRUALS

Included in creditors, deposits and accruals are trade creditors of HK$23,861,000 (2004:
HK$28,613,000). An aged analysis of the trade creditors as at 31st March, 2005 is as follows:

THE GROUP
2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$000
0 - 60 days 20,206 26,739
61 - 90 days 1,445 -
Over 90 days 2,210 1,874
23,861 28,613
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18. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised and movements thereon
during the year:

THE GROUP
Accelerated
tax Tax
depreciation losses Others Total
HK$000 HK$§000 HK$000 HK$'000
At 1st April, 2003 - - - -
Charge (credit) to income
for the year 536 (107) (50) 379
At 31st March, 2004 536 (107) (50) 379
Charge (credit) to income
for the year 388 (651) (36) (299)
924 (758) (86) 80

At 31st March, 2005, no deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
unused tax losses of HK$510,211,000 (2004: HK$504,159,000) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$2,318.000 {2004:
HK$2,359,000) that will expire in 2010. Other tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At 31st March, 2005, the Group had deductible temporary difference of HK$31,616,000 (2004:
HK$38,162,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary
difference as it is not probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

19. SHARE CAPITAL

2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$000
Authorised:
240,000,000 (2004: 240,000,000} ordinary shares
of HK$0.50 (2004: HK$0.50) each 120,000 120,000
Issued and fully paid:
171,355,871 (2004: 171,355,871) ordinary shares
of HK$0.50 (2004: HK$0.50) each 85,678 85,678

There was no movement in share capital during the year ended 31st March, 2005. In the last
financial year, three shares of HK$0.10 each were allotted at HK$0.464 on exercise of share
options and every five issued and unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each were consolidated
into one ordinary share of HK$0.50.

Details of the share option scheme of the Company are set out in note 26.
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20. RESERVES

Properties
Capital for ownuse  Exchange
Share Capital redemption revaluation fluctuation  Dividend  Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total

HK§'000  HKS'000  HKS'00  HKS000  AHKSDOO  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000

THE GROUP
At 1st April, 2003 203434 18,231 14 1,526 2,358 - 32,993 278,556
Surplus on revaluation of properties - - - 1,238 - - - 1238
Exchange difference on translation

of financial statements of

overseas subsidiaries - - - - (1,322) - - (1,322)
Profit for the year - - - - - - 22,863 22,863
Dividends - - - - - 5141 (8,568) (3.427)
At 31st March, 2004 223434 18,231 14 2,764 1,036 5,141 47,288 297,908
Final dividend for 2004 paid - - - - - {5,141) - (5,141)
Surplus on revaluation of properties - - - 685 - - - 685
Exchange difference on franslation

of financial statements of

overseas subsidiaries - - - - (47) - - {47
Prafit for the year - - - - - - 3,764 3764
Dividends - - - - - 1,713 (3,427) (1.7114)
At 31st March, 2005 223,434 16,231 14 3,449 989 1,713 47625 295,455
Notes:
(i) Reserves of the Group at the balance sheet date includes the Group’s share of the post-acquisition

loss sustained by an associate amounting to HK$103,000 (2004: HK$79,000).

(i) The capital reserve includes amounts of HK$é7,000 (2004: HK$27,000) goodwill and HK$198,000
(2004: HK$198,000) negative goodwill on consolidation.
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20. RESERVES = confinued

Capital
Share Contributed redemption Dividend Retained
premium surplus reserve reserve profits Total

HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THE COMPANY

At 1st April, 2003 223,434 6,226 14 - 13,856 243,530
Profit for the year - - - - 3,260 3,260
Dividends - - - 5,141 (8,568) (3,427)
At 31st March, 2004 223,434 6,226 14 5,141 8,548 243,363
Final dividend for 2004 paid - - - (5,141) - (5,141)
Loss for the year - - - - (2,158) (2,158)
Dividends - - - 1,713 (3,427) (1,714)
At 31st March, 2005 223,434 6,226 14 1,713 2,963 234,350
Notes:

(a) Contributed surplus represents the difference between the value of total net assets of subsidiaries

acquired and the nominai amount of the Company’s shares issued for the re-orgainisation in 1989, less
dividends paid out of the contributed surplus subsequently. Under the Companies Act of 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus of the Company is available for distribution to
shareholders.

(b) As at 31st March, 2005, the Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders amounted to
HK$10,902,000 (2004: HK$19,915,000).
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Business segments

For management purposes, the Group is currently organised into four operating divisions. These
divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its primary segment information.

Segment information about these businesses is presented below.

TURNOVER AND RESULTS

Year ended 31st March, 2005

Continuing operations

Network
Computer solution & Technical
and telecom- and Investment
business  munication maintenance in securities
machines systems services and others Total
HK$'000 HK3$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TURNOVER
Total sales 453,141 109,362 42,829 112,248 717,580
Inter-segment sales {21,372) (2,065) (7,035) - (30,472)
External sales 431,769 107,297 35,794 112,248 687,108
RESULTS
Segment results 1,609 513 2,388 1,349 5,859
Interest income 269
Unallocated corporate income 302
Unallocated corporate expenses (1,500)
Profit from operations 4,930
Finance costs {1
Share of result of an associate (826) - - - (826)
Profit before taxation 4,103
Taxation (339)
Profit for the year 3,764
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21. SEGMENT INFORMATION = continued

Business segments - continued
TURNOVER AND RESULTS

Year ended 31st March, 2004

Continuing operations Discontinued operations
Network Telecom-
solution & Technical munication
Computer telecom- and Investment General services
and business munication  maintenance  In securities  merchandise and
machings systems services and others trading retailing Total

HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§000 HK§000 HK$'000 HK§000 HK$000

TURNOVER

Total sales 433,462 121,108 46,560 126477 - 1,818 727,426
|nter-segment sales {48,723) (1,850} (5,446} - - (824) (56,843)
External sales 384,739 119,259 41,114 124 477 - 994 670,583
RESULTS

Segment results 720 1,668) 2,717 13,856 - 2,780 18,405
Interest income 2,523
Unallocated corporate income 4152
Unallocated corporate expenses (1,577)
Profit from operations 23,503
Finance costs (22)
Share of result of an associate (77) - - - - - (77)
Gain on discontinued operations - - - - 68 948 1,016
Profit before taxation 24,420
Taxation (1,557)
Profit for the year 22,863

Note: Inter-segment sales are charged at prices determined by management with reference to market prices.
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Business segments — continued

BALANCE SHEET

As at 31st March, 2005

ASSETS

Segment assets

Interests in an associate
Unallocated corporate assets

Consclidated total assets

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

As at 31st March, 2004

ASSETS

Segment assets

Interests in an associate
Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated fotal assets

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

21, SEGMENT INFORMATION = continued

CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2005

Continuing operations

Network
solution & Technical

Computer telecom- and Investment

and business munication maintenance in securities

machines systems services and others

HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000

89,683 46,312 13,015 238,064

379 - - -

35,776 25,227 9,477 -

Continuing operations Discontinued operations
Network Telecom-
solution & Technical munication
Computer telecom- and Investment General services
and business munication  maintenance in securities  merchandise and
machines systems services and others {rading retailing
HKS'000 HK§000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
112,672 42292 10,872 159,530 27 2,492
2,238 - - - - -
40,470 28,068 5,711 - 692 2,853
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Total
HK$°000

387,074
379
75,774

463,227
70,480
11,439

81,919

Total
HK$000

327,885
2,239
142,821

472,945

78,004
11,091

89,185
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27, SEGMENT INFORMATION = continuad

Business segments - continued
OTHER INFORMATION
Year ended 31st March, 2005

Continuing operations

Network
Computer solution & Technical
and telecom- and Investment
business  munication maintenance in securities
machines systems services and others Total
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Capital additions 5,340 310 14 399 6,063
Depreciation 3,156 711 341 473 4,681
Realised and unrealized loss on
other investment - - - 8,271 8,271
Impairment loss on
investment securities ~ - - 560 560
Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment 450 - - - 450
Year ended 31st March, 2004
Continuing aperations Discantinued operations
Network
Computer salution & Technical Telecom-
and telecom- and Investment General  communication
husiness munication ~ maintenance  in securities  merchandise  service and
machines systems services and others rading refailing Total

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

Capltal additions 4,558 486 226 925 - - 6,196
Depreciation 2,262 896 969 678 - - 4803
Loss on disposal of property, plant

and equipment 58 ~ - - - - 58
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21, SEGMENT INFORMATION = continued

Geographical segments

The Group's operations in sales of computer and business machines and telecommunication
systems, provision of technical and maintenance services and network solution services are carried
out in Hong Kong, Thailand and the Mainland China. The discontinued operations, retailing of
telecommunication equipment and provision of telecommunication agency services and trading of
general merchandise were carried out in Hong Kong. The following table provides an analysis of
the Group's turnover by geographical market:

Turnover by geographical market

2005 2004
HK$’000 % HK$'000 %
Hong Kong 607,118 88 516,689 77
Thailand 69,028 10 124,176 19
Others 10,962 2 29,718 4
687,108 100 670,583 100

The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts of segment assets and additions to property,
plant and equipment analysed by the geographical area in which the assets are located:

Carrying amounts Additions to property,
of segment assets plant and equipment
2005 2004 2005 2004

HK$°000 % HK$000 % HK$'000 % HK$000 %
Hong Kong 401,617 87 392,870 83 5,036 82 3,182 51
Thailand 52,206 1 65,042 14 1,006 17 3,003 48
Others 8,451 2 12,307 3 21 1 10 1
462,274 100 470,219 100 6,063 100 6,195 100
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22, EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Details of the emoluments paid to the Directors of the Company are as follows:

2005 2004

HK$’000 HK$'000

Fees 300 240
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 1,212 -
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 8 -
1,520 240

Except for the directors’ fees of HK$300,000 (2004: HK$240,000) paid to the independent Non-
executive Directors, no other emoluments were paid or are payable to the Independent Non-
executive Directors during the two years ended 31st March, 2005.

The emoluments of the Directors fall within the following bands:

Number of directors

2005 2004

Nil — HK$1,000,000 7 7
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1 -
8 7

in addition to the directors’ emoluments disclosed above, four (2004: four) Directors received
remuneration totalling HK$16,621,000 (2004: HK$15,259,000) from the Caompany’s ultimate holding
company in respect of their services to the ultimate holding company and its subsidiaries including
the Group.

The amounts paid by the ultimate holding company have not been allocated between the services

of the directors as Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, and their services to the uitimate
holding company and its other subsidiaries.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT - Continued

The five highest paid individuals included one (2004: nil) Director. The emoluments of the five
(2004: five) highest paid individuals were as follows:

2005 2004

HK$’000 HK$000

Salaries, aliowances and benefits in kind 4,409 3,354
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 189 215
4,598 3,569

The emoluments of these five (2004: five) highest paid individuals fall within the following bands:

Number of individuals

Bands 2005 2004
Nil = HK$1,000,000 3 5
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 2 -

CHARGE OF ASSETS

At 31st March, 2005, certain properties with an aggregate carrying value of HK$8,163,000 (2004:
HK$8,070,000) were mortgaged to secure general banking facilities granted to an overseas
subsidiary.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At 31st March, 2005 the Company had contingent liabilities in respect of:

(i guarantees issued for banking facilities extended to its subsidiaries amounting to
HK$3,172,000 (2004: HK$3,102,000); and

(i) guarantees issued for performance under contracts and rendering of services of certain
subsidiaries amounting to HK$650,000 (2004;: HK$2,053,000).
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25. OPERATING LEASE

(a) The Group and the Company as lessees
At the balance sheet date, the Group and the Company had commitments for future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of renting of premises
which fall due as follows:

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2005 2004 2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Within one year 3,658 3,356 - 92
In the second to fifth
year inclusive 83 - - -
3,738 3,356 - 92

Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for an average term of 2 years.

(b) The Group as lessors
All the investment properties were leased out for a period of one year and the Group did not
have any renewal options given to the lessees. The future minimum lease payments receivable
by the Group within one year under non-cancellable operating ieases amounted to
HK$360,000 (2004: HK$135,000).

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s existing share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted by the shareholders
pursuant to a resolution passed on 20th September, 2002 for the primary purpose of providing the
participants with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company and to encourage
participants to work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of
the Company and its shareholders as a whole. The Scheme will expire on 19th September, 2012.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the Scheme and any
other schemes is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of
shareholders’ approval of the Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit") or, if such 10% limit is
refreshed, at the date of shareholders’ approval of the renewal of the Scheme Mandate Limit. The
maximum aggregate number of shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other share option schemes,
must not exceed 30% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue from time to time. The
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted to any individual in any one year is
not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company then in issue, without prior approval
from the Company’s and CIHL's shareholders. Each grant of options to any director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder must be approved by independent non-executive directors of the Company
and CIHL. Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or any independent non-
executive director or any of their respective associates would result in the shares of the Company
issued and to be issued upon exercise of options already granted and to be granted in excess of
0.1% of the Company’s issued share capital and with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 in the 12-
month periocd up to the date of grant must be approved in advance by the Company's and ClHL's
shareholders.
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

Options granted must be taken up within 30 days from the date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 for
each lot of options granted. An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme at any time during the effective period of the Scheme to be notified by the board of
directors which shall not be later than 10 years from the date of grant. The exercise price is
determined by the directors of the Company, and will not be less than the highest of the closing
price of the Company's share on the date of grant, the average closing price of the share on the
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant, and the
nominal value.

No options were granted since the adoption of the Scheme.

O
M

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme which is registered under the
Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the "ORSO Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the "“MPF Scheme”) for the benefits of the Hong Kong emplioyees. The assets of
the schemes are held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the contro! of trustees.
Employees who were members of the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of the MPF
Scheme were offered a choice of staying within the ORSO Scheme or switching to the MPF
Scheme, whereas all new employees joining the Group on or after 1st December, 2000 are required
to join the MPF Scheme.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes 5% of the relevant payroll costs at a
maximum of HK$20,000 to the scheme, which contribution is matched by the employee.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions from both employees and the Group at
rates ranging from 5% to 7.5% of the employee’s basic salary, depending on the length of services
with the Group.

Where there are employees who leave the ORSQO scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions,
the contributions payable by the Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions. The
amount of forfeited contributions utilised in this manner during the year was HK$206,000 (2004:
HK$569,000).

The total cost charged to income statement of HK$3,711,000 (2004: HK$3,682,000) represents
contributions pay and payable to these schemes by the Group in respect of the current accounting
period net of forfeited contributions. As at 31st March, 2005, contributions of HK$272,000 (2004
HK$250,000) due in respect of the reporting period had not been paid over to the schemes.
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28, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s ultimate holding company, CIHL and its subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities are regarded as related parties for the purpose of Statement of Standard Accounting
Practice 20 (“SSAP 20”) issued by the HKICPA. Details of the material transactions with these
companies are as follows:

(a) On 28th March, 2004, the Company renewed the management agreement with Chevalier
(HK) Limited ("CHKL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of CIHL, for the provision of company
secretarial, accounting, electronic data processing, personnel and property management
services by CHKL to the Group in respect of the year ended 31st March, 2005 at a
management fee calculated at the rate of 0.5% of the annual turnover of the Group excluding
those of its overseas subsidiaries. Management fees paid to CHKL during the year under
this agreement amounted to HK$2,775,000 (2004: HK$2,376,000). The management
agreement expired on 28th March, 2005 and has been renewed for a further term of one
year.

(b) During the year, the Group sold computer equipment and business machines and provided
maintenance services to wholly-owned subsidiaries of CIHL totalling HK$10,241,000 (2004:
HK$4,492,000). The price is determined with reference to market prices.

(c) During the year, the Group paid rentals determined with reference to market rates amounting
to HK$3,828,000 (2004: HK$3,488,000) to wholly-owned subsidiaries of CIHL, for the use of
their premises by the Group.

(d) During the year, the Group paid storage and delivery charges amounting to HK$2,054,000
(2004: HK$4,167,000) and HK$734,800 (2004: HK$1,483,000), respectively, to a wholly-
owned subsidiary of CIHL to cover its costs for services provided to the Group.

The outstanding balance due from the ultimate holding company arising from the above transactions
and payment of recurrent expenses on behalf of the Group as at 31st March, 2005 amounted to
HK711,000 (2004: HK$245,000).

Apart from the above, the Group obtained repayment from the associate during the year and
provisicn of approximately HK$1,180,000 was made on the remaining amount due from it. The
amount outstanding at 31st March, 2005 is HK$1,000 (2004: HK$2,215,000).

The balance with the associate has no fixed repayment terms, unsecured and interest-free. The
balance with the associate is classified as non-current asset as the Company has no intention to
demand for repayment within one year.

29, SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On 20th May, 2005, the Group acquired the entire issued share capital of Pacific Coffee (Holdings)
Limited ("Pacific Coffee”) at a consideration of HK$205,000,000 of which HK$60,000,000 was
financed by bank borrowings. It is impracticable to disclose the amounts of assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of Pacific Coffee at the acquisition date because management of the Group is
in the process of determining such amounts.

Pacific Coffee is engaged in the business of trading and retailing of coffee products and operation
of coffee shops.
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Name of Company

Directly held by the Company:

Chevalier (OA) Holdings Limited

Chevalier iTech (S) Pte. Ltd.

Chevalier iTech Thai Limited *

Place or
country of
incorporation or
registration/
operation

Hong Kong

Singapere

Thailand

Chevalier Network Solutions Thai Limited Thailand

{Formerly known as Chevalier
Telecom (Thailand) Limited)

Sup Aswin Limited

Indirectly held by the Company:

Chevalier (Computer) Limited

Chevalier iTech Services Limited

Chevalier (Network Solutions)

Limited

Chevalier (OA) Limited

Thailand

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Principal Subsidiaries

Effective

percentage

Issued and of issued share
Class of paid up No. of or registered Principal
shares capital shares capital held activities
Ordinary HK$31,600,000 316,000,000 100 Investment
holding
Ordinary $$500,000 ' 500,000 100 Trading of business
machines
Ordinary  BAHT18,980,000 189,800 100  Trading of computer
Preference  BAHT1,020,000 10,200 100 and business
machines
Ordinary ~ BAHT15,000,000 150,000 100 Trading of
telecommunication
equipment
Ordinary ~ BAHT15,000,000 150,000 100 Property investment
Ordinary HK$100,000 100,000 100 Trading and
servicing of
computer system
and equipment
Ordinary HK$2 2 100 Trading and
servicing
of computer
and business
machines
Ordinary HK$2 2 100 Network systems
and solution
services
Ordinary HK$100,000 100,000 100  Trading of computer
and office

equipment and
provision of repair
and maintenance
services
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Principal Subsidiaries

Place or Effective

country of percentage

incorporation or Issued and of issued share
registration/  Class of paid up No. of or registered Principal
Name of Company operation shares capital shares capital held activities
Chevalier (OA) Services Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 100 Maintenance
services
Guangzhou Chevalier iTech The Mainland Not HK$5,000,000 Not 100 Maintenance
Services Co., Lid. China  applicable applicable services
Chevalier (Satellink) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$365,002 365,002 100 Installation of
satellite antennae
Chevalier (Bictech) Limited Hong Keng COrdinary HK$2 2 100 Investments in
securities
Chevalier iTech Limited Hong Kong Ordinary ~ HK$200,000,000 200,000,000 100 Trading of
computer and
investments in
securities
Lucky Fine Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 100  Property investment
and investments in
securities

The subsidiary in the Mainland China is wholly foreign owned enterprise.

# Preference shares are 10% non-cumuiative and every four preference shares of this company carry one vote.

All such shares have no right to participate in the distribution of surplus assets in case of winding-up.

54 ANNUAL REPORT 2004 - 2005




